

Senate Daily Reader

Monday, February 11, 2002

Bills Included				
HB 1002	HB 1009	HB 1021	HB 1034	HB 1039
HB 1049	HB 1067	HB 1081	HB 1091	HB 1187
HB 1219	SB 50			

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

654H0032

HOUSE TAXATION COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

HB 1002 - 01/17/2002

Introduced by: Representatives Brown (Richard), Glenski, Peterson (Jim), and Smidt and
Senators McCracken, Dennert, and Reedy at the request of the Interim
Streamlined Sales Tax Project Task Force

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to impose a gross receipts tax on certain visitor-related
2 businesses.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. Terms used in this Act mean:

5 (1) "Lodging establishment," any building, structure, property, or premise kept, used,
6 maintained, advertised, or held out to the public to be a place where sleeping
7 accommodations are furnished to transient guests. The following constitute lodging
8 establishments: bed and breakfast inns, boarding houses, bungalows cabins,
9 condominiums, cottages, dude ranches, guest houses, guest ranches, hostels, hotels,
10 inns, lodges, motels, resorts, tourist homes, timeshare rentals, vacation home rentals,
11 and villas;

12 (2) "Campground," any property or premise kept, used, maintained, advertised, or held
13 out to the public to be a place where sites are available for placing of tents, campers,
14 trailers, mobile homes, or other mobile accommodations to transient guests.



1 Campgrounds include city, county, and state-owned campgrounds, as well as
2 concessionaires or contractors who manage or operate publicly owned campgrounds.

3 The following constitute campgrounds: campgrounds, camping cabins, camping
4 resorts, commercial picnic grounds, organizational camps, park units, recreational
5 vehicle parks, trailer parks, and youth camps;

6 (3) "Visitor attraction," any business establishment that offers recreation, entertainment,
7 or interpretation of natural or cultural history. The following constitute visitor
8 attractions: aerial tramways, amusement parks, animal exhibits, animal shows, antique
9 car exhibits, antique exhibits, arboreta, aquariums, batting cages, botanical gardens,
10 bumper boats, bumper cars, bungee jumps, carnival rides, chuck wagon suppers,
11 commercial playgrounds, go-cart raceways, gold mines, golf driving ranges, historic
12 sites, human mazes, hunting preserves, miniature golf courses, museums, music
13 shows, observation towers, outdoor dramas, pitch 'n putt golf courses, playhouses,
14 racetracks, recreational gold mining, reptile exhibits, restorations, scenic railroads,
15 shooting preserves, show caves, ski areas, spectator events, water slides, wave pools,
16 wax figure exhibits, and zoological gardens. A visitor attraction includes any business
17 which is being conducted on the site of another visitor attraction;

18 (4) "Recreational service," any business establishment that provides leisure or recreational
19 experiences. The following constitute recreational services: aerial sightseeing tours,
20 amusement rides, bath houses, carriage rides, climbing guides, day camps, fishing
21 guides, fishing ponds, golf driving ranges, hunting guides, outfitters, pack trains,
22 private beaches, river rafting, saddle horse rides, sightseeing guides, sightseeing tours,
23 shooting galleries, shooting ranges, skeet ranges, ski instruction, ski lift tickets, ski
24 trails, spas, trail rides, trap ranges, tour bus excursions, and youth camps;

- 1 (5) "Recreational equipment rental," include all items rented for twenty-eight days or less
2 whose primary purpose is recreational use. Rental, under such circumstances, of the
3 following constitute recreational equipment rentals: all-terrain vehicles, beach chairs,
4 bicycles, bumper boats, bumper cars, campers, camping trailers, firearms, fishing
5 equipment, flotation devices, go carts, golf clubs, hunting dogs, hunting equipment,
6 mopeds, motor coaches, motorcycles, pack animals, recreational courts and
7 equipment, recreational gold mining equipment, recreational vehicles, recreational
8 water equipment, rock climbing gear, roller blades, saddle horses, skis, snowboards,
9 snowmobiles, snowmobile trailers, snowshoes, watercraft, and watercraft trailers;
- 10 (6) "Spectator event," any organized activity meant for entertainment or education and
11 open to the public. The following constitute spectator events: air shows, auto races,
12 auto shows, balloon shows, boat races, car rallies, carnivals, circuses, concerts, dance
13 festivals, draft horse contests, ethnic festivals, exhibitions, expositions, fairs,
14 greyhound races, horse races, horse shows, monster truck shows, motorcycle
15 expositions, motorcycle races, music festivals, rodeos, sporting events, stage
16 performances, threshing bees, tractor pull contests, and water-skiing shows. A
17 spectator event includes any business which is conducted on the site of another
18 spectator event;
- 19 (7) "Visitor intensive business," any antique shop, book store, candy store, flea market,
20 gift shop, indigenous arts and crafts shop, jewelry, lapidary shop, leather goods shop,
21 marina, novelty shop, pottery shop, rock shop, souvenir shop, and tee shirt shop if
22 fifty percent or more of annual total receipts are derived from the sale of tangible
23 personal property, during the months of June, July, August, and September. No
24 postsecondary, college, and university book store is, however, included.

1 Section 2. There is hereby imposed a tax of one percent on the gross receipts from any
2 lodging establishment, campground, motor vehicle rental, visitor attraction, recreational
3 equipment rental, recreational service, spectator event, and visitor-intensive business. The tax
4 imposed by this section on the gross receipts of any visitor-intensive business shall apply to the
5 gross receipts received by such business during the months of June, July, August, and September.
6 The tax imposed by this section is in addition to any other tax imposed by chapters 10-45 and
7 10-46. Tangible personal property, services, and admissions are subject to the tax imposed by
8 this section only if subject to tax by chapters 10-45 and 10-46.

9 Section 3. The revenue from the tax imposed by section 2 of this Act shall be deposited in
10 the tourism promotion fund created in § 1-42-31.

11 Section 4. The tax imposed by section 2 of this Act on any lodging establishment applies only
12 to the gross receipts from the rental of rooms by a lodging establishment.

13 Section 5. The tax imposed by section 2 of this Act on any campground applies to the gross
14 receipts from the rental of campground space.

15 Section 6. The tax imposed by section 2 of this Act applies to the gross receipts from
16 admission to a visitor attraction and from the sale of tangible personal property, services,
17 parking, or transportation at a visitor attraction.

18 Section 7. The tax imposed by section 2 of this Act applies to the gross receipts from
19 admission to a spectator event and from the sale of tangible personal property, services, parking,
20 or transportation at a spectator event.

21 Section 8. Gross receipts from the rental of rooms or sites at a lodging establishment or
22 campground owned by nonprofit religious, educational, or youth organization are exempt from
23 the tax imposed by section 2 of this Act if rented to a member of such organization.

24 Section 9. The tax imposed by section 2 of this Act shall be collected and administered by

1 the Department of Revenue.

2 Section 10. Any person who is subject to the tax imposed by this Act shall make a return and
3 remittance to the Department of Revenue on forms prescribed and furnished by the department
4 in the following manner:

5 (1) Any person, whose tax liability is one thousand dollars or more annually, shall file the
6 return and remit the tax on or before the twentieth day of the month following each
7 monthly period;

8 (2) Any person, whose tax liability is less than one thousand dollars annually, shall file the
9 return and remit the tax on or before the last day of the month following each two-
10 month period; and

11 (3) Any person, whose tax liability is one thousand dollars or more annually and who
12 remits the tax by electronic transfer to the state, shall file the return by electronic
13 means on or before the twenty-third day of the month following each monthly period
14 and remit the tax on or before the second to the last day of the month following each
15 monthly period.

16 The secretary of revenue may grant an extension of not more than five days for filing a return
17 and remittance. Unless an extension is granted, penalty or interest under § 10-59-6 shall be paid
18 if a return or remittance is not made on time.

19 Section 11. The secretary of revenue may require or allow some returns and remittances to
20 be filed on a monthly, bimonthly, semiannual, or annual basis and the return and remittance is due
21 the last day of the month following the reporting period. For persons issued a temporary or
22 seasonal sales tax permit pursuant to chapter 10-45, the returns and remittances may be required
23 at a time determined by the secretary. Section 10-59-6 applies to returns and payments under this
24 section.

1 Section 12. The definitions, administrative, collection, and enforcement provisions of
2 chapters 10-45 and 10-46 apply to the tax imposed by this Act, where applicable.

3 Section 13. The secretary of revenue may promulgate rules pursuant to chapter 1-26
4 concerning:

- 5 (1) Licensing, including bonding and filing license applications;
- 6 (2) The filing of returns and payment of the tax;
- 7 (3) Determining the application of the tax and exemptions;
- 8 (4) Taxpayer record-keeping requirements; and
- 9 (5) Determining auditing methods.

10 Section 14. Any person who:

- 11 (1) Makes any false or fraudulent return in attempting to defeat or evade the tax imposed
12 by this Act is guilty of a Class 6 felony;
- 13 (2) Fails to pay tax due under this Act within thirty days from the date the tax becomes
14 due is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor;
- 15 (3) Fails to keep the records and books required by section 13 of this Act or refuses to
16 exhibit these records to the secretary of revenue or the secretary's agents for the
17 purpose of examination is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor;
- 18 (4) Fails to file a return required by this Act within thirty days from the date the return is
19 due is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor;
- 20 (5) Willfully violates any rule of the secretary of revenue for the administration and
21 enforcement of the provisions of this Act is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor; or
- 22 (6) Violates either subdivision (2) or subdivision (4) two or more times in any twelve-
23 month period is guilty of a Class 6 felony.

24 Section 15. That § 10-59-1 be amended to read as follows:

1 10-59-1. The provisions of this chapter apply to any taxes or fees or persons subject to taxes
2 or fees imposed by chapters 10-39, 10-39A, 10-39B, 10-43, 10-45, 10-46, 10-46A, 10-46B,
3 10-47B, 10-52, 32-3, 32-3A, 32-5, 32-5B, 32-6B, 32-9, 32-10, and 34A-13 and §§ 22-25-48,
4 49-31-51, 50-4-13 to 50-4-17, inclusive, this Act, and the provisions of chapter 10-45B.

5 Section 16. That § 10-45-69.1 be repealed.

6 ~~10-45-69.1. There is hereby imposed a tax of one percent on the gross receipts from hotels
7 and lodging places; campgrounds; motor vehicle rentals; visitor attractions; recreational
8 equipment rentals; recreational services; spectator events; and visitor-intensive businesses. The
9 tax imposed by this section to the gross receipts of visitor-intensive businesses shall apply to the
10 gross receipts received by such businesses during the months of June, July, August, and
11 September. The tax imposed by this section is in addition to any other tax imposed by chapters
12 10-45 and 10-46. Tangible personal property, services, and admissions are subject to the tax
13 imposed by this section only if subject to tax by chapters 10-45 and 10-46.~~

14 Section 17. That § 10-45-69.2 be repealed.

15 ~~10-45-69.2. The revenue from the tax imposed by § 10-45-69.1 shall be deposited in the
16 tourism promotion fund created in § 1-42-31.~~

17 Section 18. That § 10-45-69.3 be repealed.

18 ~~10-45-69.3. The tax imposed by § 10-45-69.1 on hotels and lodging establishments shall only
19 apply to the gross receipts from the rental of rooms by hotels and lodging establishments. A
20 lodging establishment is any building, structure, property, or premise kept, used, maintained,
21 advertised, or held out to the public to be a place where sleeping accommodations are furnished
22 in two or more rental units to transient guest. The following constitute hotels and lodging
23 establishments: bed and breakfast inns, boarding houses, bungalows cabins, condominiums,
24 cottages, dude ranches, guest houses, guest ranches, hostels, hotels, inns, lodges, motels, resorts,~~

1 ~~tourist homes, timeshare rentals, vacation home rentals, and villas.~~

2 Section 19. That § 10-45-69.4 be repealed.

3 ~~—10-45-69.4. The tax imposed by § 10-45-69.1 on campgrounds shall apply to the gross~~
4 ~~receipts from the rental of campground space. A campground is any property or premise kept,~~
5 ~~used, maintained, advertised, or held out to the public to be a place where sites are available for~~
6 ~~placing of tents, campers, trailers, mobile homes, or other mobile accommodations in two or~~
7 ~~more rental units to transient guests. Campgrounds include city, county, and state-owned~~
8 ~~campgrounds, as well as concessionaires or contractors who manage or operate publicly-owned~~
9 ~~campgrounds. The following constitute campgrounds: campgrounds, camping cabins, camping~~
10 ~~resorts, commercial picnic grounds, organizational camps, park units, recreational vehicle parks,~~
11 ~~trailer parks, and youth camps.~~

12 Section 20. That § 10-45-69.5 be repealed.

13 ~~—10-45-69.5. For the purposes of § 10-45-69.1, a visitor attraction is any business~~
14 ~~establishment that offers recreation, entertainment, or interpretation of natural or cultural history.~~
15 ~~The following constitute visitor attractions: aerial tramways, amusement parks, animal exhibits,~~
16 ~~animal shows, antique car exhibits, antique exhibits, arboreta, aquariums, batting cages, botanical~~
17 ~~gardens, bumper boats, bumper cars, bungee jumps, carnival rides, chuck wagon suppers,~~
18 ~~commercial playgrounds, go-cart raceways, gold mines, golf driving ranges, historic sites, human~~
19 ~~mazes, hunting preserves, miniature golf courses, museums, music shows, observation towers,~~
20 ~~outdoor dramas, pitch 'n putt golf courses, playhouses, racetracks, recreational gold mining,~~
21 ~~reptile exhibits, restorations, scenic railroads, shooting preserves, show caves, ski areas,~~
22 ~~spectator events, water slides, wave pools, wax figure exhibits, and zoological gardens.~~

23 ~~—The tax imposed by § 10-45-69.1 applies to the gross receipts from admission to a visitor~~
24 ~~attraction and from the sale of tangible personal property, services, parking, or transportation.~~

1 ~~A visitor attraction includes any business which is being conducted on the site of another visitor~~
2 ~~attraction.~~

3 Section 21. That § 10-45-69.6 be repealed.

4 ~~— 10-45-69.6. For the purposes of § 10-45-69.1, a recreational service is any business~~
5 ~~establishment that provides leisure or recreational experiences. The following constitute~~
6 ~~recreational services: aerial sightseeing tours, amusement rides, bath houses, carriage rides,~~
7 ~~climbing guides, day camps, fishing guides, fishing ponds, golf driving ranges, hunting guides,~~
8 ~~outfitters, pack trains, private beaches, river rafting, saddle horse rides, sightseeing guides,~~
9 ~~sightseeing tours, shooting galleries, shooting ranges, skeet ranges, ski instruction, ski lift tickets,~~
10 ~~ski trails, spas, trail rides, trap ranges, tour bus excursions, and youth camps.~~

11 Section 22. That § 10-45-69.7 be repealed.

12 ~~— 10-45-69.7. For the purposes of § 10-45-69.1, recreational equipment rentals include all~~
13 ~~items rented for twenty-eight days or less whose primary purpose is recreational use. Rental,~~
14 ~~under such circumstances, of the following constitute recreational equipment rentals: all-terrain~~
15 ~~vehicles, beach chairs, bicycles, bumper boats, bumper cars, campers, camping trailers, firearms,~~
16 ~~fishing equipment, flotation devices, go carts, golf clubs, hunting dogs, hunting equipment,~~
17 ~~mopeds, motor coaches, motorcycles, pack animals, recreational courts and equipment,~~
18 ~~recreational gold mining equipment, recreational vehicles, recreational water equipment, rock~~
19 ~~climbing gear, roller blades, saddle horses, skis, snowboards, snowmobiles, snowmobile trailers,~~
20 ~~snowshoes, watercraft, and watercraft trailers.~~

21 Section 23. That § 10-45-69.8 be repealed.

22 ~~— 10-45-69.8. For the purposes of § 10-45-69.1, a spectator event is any organized activity~~
23 ~~meant for entertainment or education and open to the public. The following constitute spectator~~
24 ~~events: air shows, auto races, auto shows, balloon shows, boat races, car rallies, carnivals,~~

1 ~~circuses, concerts, dance festivals, draft horse contests, ethnic festivals, exhibitions, expositions,~~
2 ~~fairs, greyhound races, horse races, horse shows, monster truck shows, motorcycle expositions,~~
3 ~~motorcycle races, music festivals, rodeos, sporting events, stage performances, threshing bees,~~
4 ~~tractor pull contests, and water-skiing shows.~~

5 ~~— The tax imposed by § 10-45-69.1 applies to the gross receipts from admission to a spectator~~
6 ~~event and from the sale of tangible personal property, services, parking, or transportation at a~~
7 ~~spectator event. A spectator event includes any business which is conducted on the site of~~
8 ~~another spectator event.~~

9 Section 24. That § 10-45-69.9 be repealed.

10 ~~— 10-45-69.9. For the purposes of § 10-45-69.1, a visitor-intensive business is any: antique~~
11 ~~shop, book store, candy store, flea market, gift shop, indigenous arts and craft shop, jewelry,~~
12 ~~lapidary shop, leather goods shop, marina, novelty shop, pottery shop, rock shop, souvenir shop,~~
13 ~~and tee shirt shop if fifty percent or more of annual total receipts are derived from the sale of~~
14 ~~tangible personal property, during the months of June, July, August, and September. No~~
15 ~~postsecondary, college, and university book store is, however, included.~~

16 Section 25. That § 10-45-69.10 be repealed.

17 ~~— 10-45-69.10. There is exempted from the tax imposed by § 10-45-69.1, gross receipts from~~
18 ~~the rental of rooms or sites at a lodging establishment or campground owned by nonprofit~~
19 ~~religious, educational, or youth organization if rented to members of such organizations.~~

20 Section 26. That § 10-45-91 be amended to read as follows:

21 10-45-91. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 10-45-13, admissions to rodeos and rodeo
22 related activities and events are subject to the tax imposed by §§ 10-45-8 and ~~10-45-69.1~~ section
23 2 of this Act.

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

474H0081

HOUSE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE

ENGROSSED NO. **HB 1009** - 01/17/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on Local Government at the request of the Secretary of State

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise the election procedures of certain special purpose
2 districts.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 31-12A-15 be amended to read as follows:

5 31-12A-15. In ~~every~~ each road district an annual election of officers shall be held on the first
6 Tuesday after the anniversary date of the first election at ~~such a~~ a place in the district as the board
7 of trustees shall designate. ~~Such~~ The election shall be conducted according to chapter ~~9-13~~ 8-3,
8 at a meeting of the registered voters who reside in the road district.

9 Section 2. That chapter 31-12A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
10 as follows:

11 Notice of the meeting and election required by § 31-12A-15 shall be given by the secretary-
12 treasurer by one publication in a legal newspaper of general circulation in each county in which
13 the district is situated or notice may be given by posting in a public place within the district and
14 delivering the notice to each registered voter of the district. The notice shall include the time and
15 place of the election and each vacancy to be filled at the election. The meeting shall be held not



1 less than seven days nor more than fourteen days after the date of publication or delivery of the
2 notice.

3 Section 3. That § 34-11A-2 be amended to read as follows:

4 34-11A-2. Any municipality located within the area may be included in the ambulance district
5 if twenty percent of the landowners within the municipality who are also registered voters within
6 the municipality sign a separate petition from that municipality, or if the governing body of the
7 municipality establishes intent by passing a resolution so indicating.

8 Section 4. That § 34-11A-29 be amended to read as follows:

9 34-11A-29. A regular meeting of the registered voters who are residing within the boundaries
10 of a district shall be held in the first quarter of each calendar year and special meetings may be
11 called by the board of directors at any time. The annual election shall be conducted during the
12 regular meeting. Notice ~~thereof~~ of the annual election shall be given by the secretary-treasurer
13 by one publication in a legal newspaper of general circulation in each county in which ~~such~~ the
14 district is situated. The meeting shall be held not less than seven days nor more than fourteen
15 days after the date of publication of ~~such~~ the notice.

16 Section 5. That § 34-31A-3 be amended to read as follows:

17 34-31A-3. Any municipality located within the area, whether the municipality has a fire
18 department or not, may be included in the rural fire district if twenty percent of the landowners
19 within the municipality who are also registered voters within the municipality sign ~~the~~ a separate
20 petition from that municipality, or if the governing body of the municipality establishes intent by
21 passing a resolution so indicating.

22 Section 6. That § 34-31A-43 be amended to read as follows:

23 34-31A-43. A regular meeting of the electors who are owners of any interest in real property
24 assessed for taxation in the district and who are residing within the boundaries of a district shall

1 be held in the first quarter of each calendar year and special meetings may be called by the board
2 of directors at any time. The annual election shall be conducted during the regular meeting.
3 ~~Notice thereof~~ of the annual election shall be given by the secretary-treasurer by one publication
4 in a legal newspaper of general circulation in each county in which ~~such~~ the district is situated.
5 The meeting shall be held not less than seven days nor more than fourteen days after the date of
6 publication of ~~such~~ the notice.

7 Section 7. That § 46A-18-23 be amended to read as follows:

8 46A-18-23. Prior to May first of each year, on ~~dates~~ a date established by the directors, an
9 annual meeting of the district shall be held during which the registered voters shall elect, by
10 ballot, under the direction of the secretary of the district, directors to replace those whose terms
11 have expired. Newly elected directors shall assume office at the time of their election.

12 Section 8. That § 46A-18-47 be amended to read as follows:

13 46A-18-47. In the election provided in § 46A-18-45, ~~eligibility~~ registered voters are eligible
14 ~~to vote as prescribed by § 46A-18-5 shall govern.~~ If special assessments are proposed, only
15 those landowners subject to such assessments may vote. If the financing proposal provides for
16 both general tax levies and special assessments, the votes applicable to the general tax and the
17 votes applicable to the special assessments shall be counted separately and accepted separately
18 for purposes of determining the outcome of the election.

19 Section 9. That § 3-4-3 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SUBDIVISION to read as
20 follows:

21 In special purpose districts, unless otherwise provided, by the remaining board of trustees.

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0201

HOUSE COMMERCE COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

HB 1021 - 01/15/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on Commerce at the request of the Department of Commerce
and Regulation

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise the record retention period for certain insurance
2 licensees and registrants.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 58-30-127 be amended to read as follows:

5 58-30-127. No managing general agent may place business with an insurer unless there is in
6 force a written contract between the parties which sets forth the responsibilities of each party and
7 specifies the division of common or shared responsibilities. The contract shall contain the
8 following minimum provisions:

9 (1) The insurer may terminate the contract for cause upon written notice to the managing
10 general agent. The insurer may suspend the underwriting authority of the managing
11 general agent during the pendency of any dispute regarding the cause for termination;

12 (2) The managing general agent shall render accounts to the insurer detailing all
13 transactions and remit all funds due under the contract to the insurer on not less than
14 a monthly basis;



- 1 (3) All funds collected for the account of an insurer shall be held by the managing general
2 agent in an escrow account in a bank which is a qualified United States financial
3 institution as defined in § 58-30-139. This account shall be used for all payments on
4 behalf of the insurer. The managing general agent may retain no more than three
5 months estimated claims payments and allocated loss adjustment expenses;
- 6 (4) Separate records of business written by the managing general agent shall be
7 maintained. The insurer shall have access and right to copy all accounts and records
8 related to its business in a form usable by the insurer and the director shall have access
9 to all books, bank accounts, and records of the managing general agent in a form
10 usable to the director. Records shall be retained for ~~three~~ five years or until examined,
11 ~~whichever is later~~;
- 12 (5) The contract may not be assigned in whole or part by the managing general agent;
- 13 (6) Appropriate underwriting guidelines including:
- 14 (a) The maximum annual premium volume;
- 15 (b) The basis of the rates to be charged;
- 16 (c) The types of risks which may be written;
- 17 (d) Maximum limits of liability;
- 18 (e) Applicable exclusions;
- 19 (f) Territorial limitations;
- 20 (g) Policy cancellation provisions; and
- 21 (h) The maximum policy period; and
- 22 (7) Timely transmission of electronic claims files.

23 The insurer may cancel or nonrenew any policy of insurance subject to the applicable laws
24 and regulations concerning the cancellation and nonrenewal of insurance policies.

1 Section 2. That chapter 58-1 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as
2 follows:

3 Any insurer, nonprofit, surgical, dental or hospital plan, a health maintenance organization,
4 or any other person required to be licensed or registered under this title shall retain all books and
5 records that are subject to examination pursuant to chapter 58-3 for a period of not less than five
6 years.

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0213

HOUSE ENGROSSED NO. **HB 1034** - 01/25/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on Transportation at the request of the Department of
Transportation

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to reduce the legal blood alcohol limits for motor vehicle
2 drivers and boat operators.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 32-23-1 be amended to read as follows:

5 32-23-1. ~~A~~ No person may ~~not~~ drive or be in actual physical control of any vehicle while:

- 6 (1) There is ~~0.10~~ 0.08 percent or more by weight of alcohol in ~~his~~ that person's blood as
7 shown by chemical analysis of ~~his~~ that person's breath, blood, or other bodily
8 substance;
- 9 (2) Under the influence of an alcoholic beverage;
- 10 (3) Under the influence of marijuana or any controlled drug or substance to a degree
11 which renders ~~him~~ the person incapable of safely driving; or
- 12 (4) Under the combined influence of an alcoholic beverage and marijuana or any
13 controlled drug or substance to a degree which renders ~~him~~ the person incapable of
14 safely driving.

15 Section 2. That § 32-23-7 be amended to read as follows:



1 32-23-7. In any criminal prosecution for a violation of § 32-23-1 relating to driving a vehicle
2 while under the influence of intoxicating liquor, a violation of § 22-16-41, or a violation of
3 § 22-16-42, the amount of alcohol in the defendant's blood at the time alleged as shown by
4 chemical analysis of the defendant's blood, breath, or other bodily substance ~~shall give~~ gives
5 to the following presumptions:

6 (1) If there was at that time five hundredths percent or less by weight of alcohol in the
7 defendant's blood, it ~~shall be~~ is presumed that the defendant was not under the
8 influence of intoxicating liquor;

9 (2) If there was at that time in excess of five hundredths percent but less than ~~ten~~ eight
10 hundredths percent by weight of alcohol in the defendant's blood, such fact ~~shall~~ does
11 not give rise to any presumption that the defendant was or was not under the
12 influence of intoxicating liquor, but such fact may be considered with other competent
13 evidence in determining the guilt or innocence of the defendant;

14 (3) If there was at that time ~~ten~~ eight hundredths percent or more by weight of alcohol
15 in the defendant's blood, it ~~shall be~~ is presumed that the defendant was under the
16 influence of intoxicating liquor.

17 Percent by weight of alcohol in the blood shall be based upon milligrams of alcohol per 1.0
18 cubic centimeters of whole blood or 2100 cubic centimeters of deep lung breath.

19 Section 3. That § 32-23-1.3 be amended to read as follows:

20 32-23-1.3. Any person arrested for driving or being in actual physical control of a vehicle
21 while the weight of alcohol in the blood of the arrested person is ~~0.10~~ 0.08 percent or greater,
22 shall be charged with a violation of § 32-23-1. The charge may be reduced or dismissed only if
23 the prosecuting attorney states the reasons for reduction or dismissal in writing and on the record
24 and files the reasons with the clerk of courts.

1 Section 4. That § 32-12A-44 be amended to read as follows:

2 32-12A-44. No person may drive or be in actual physical control of a commercial motor
3 vehicle while there is between 0.04 and ~~0.10~~ 0.08 percent or more, by weight of alcohol in that
4 person's blood as shown by chemical analysis of that person's breath, blood, or other body
5 substance. Any violation of this section is a Class 2 misdemeanor.

6 Section 5. That § 42-8-45 be amended to read as follows:

7 42-8-45. No person may operate a boat while underway on the public waters of the state
8 while:

- 9 (1) There is ~~0.10~~ 0.08 percent or more by weight of alcohol in his blood as shown by
10 chemical analysis of ~~his~~ that person's breath, blood, or other bodily substance;
- 11 (2) Under the influence of an alcoholic beverage;
- 12 (3) Under the influence of marijuana or any controlled drug or substance to a degree
13 which renders ~~him~~ the person incapable of safely driving or operating such boat; or
- 14 (4) Under the combined influence of an alcoholic beverage and marijuana or any
15 controlled drug or substance to a degree which renders ~~him~~ the person incapable of
16 safely driving or operating such boat.

17 Any violation of this section is a Class 1 misdemeanor.

18 Section 6. That § 42-8-45.4 be amended to read as follows:

19 42-8-45.4. In any criminal prosecution for a violation of § 42-8-45, the amount of alcohol
20 in the defendant's blood at the time alleged as shown by chemical analysis of the defendant's
21 blood, breath, or other bodily substance ~~shall give~~ gives rise to the following presumptions:

- 22 (1) If there was at that time five hundredths percent or less by weight of alcohol in the
23 defendant's blood, it ~~shall be~~ is presumed that the defendant was not under the
24 influence of intoxicating liquor;

1 (2) If there was at that time in excess of five hundredths percent but less than ~~ten~~ eight
2 hundredths percent by weight of alcohol in the defendant's blood, such fact does not
3 give rise to any presumption that the defendant was or was not under the influence of
4 intoxicating liquor, but such fact may be considered with other competent evidence
5 in determining the guilt or innocence of the defendant;

6 (3) If there was at that time ~~ten~~ eight hundredths percent or more by weight of alcohol
7 in the defendant's blood, it ~~shall be~~ is presumed that the defendant was under the
8 influence of intoxicating liquor.

9 Percent by weight of alcohol in the blood shall be based upon milligrams of alcohol per 1.0
10 cubic centimeters of whole blood or 2100 cubic centimeters of deep lung breath.

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0237

HOUSE STATE AFFAIRS COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO. **HB 1039** - 01/16/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on State Affairs at the request of the Secretary of State

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to allow an application for a concealed pistol permit to be
2 filed electronically.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 23-7-8 be amended to read as follows:

5 23-7-8. The application for a permit to carry a concealed pistol shall be filed either
6 electronically or in triplicate on a form prescribed by the secretary of state. The application shall
7 require the applicant's complete name, address, occupation, place and date of birth, physical
8 description, a statement that the applicant has never pled guilty to, nolo contendere to, or been
9 convicted of a crime of violence, a statement that the information on the application is true and
10 correct, and the applicant's signature. ~~The~~ If filed in triplicate, the original shall be delivered to
11 the applicant as the temporary permit, the duplicate shall within seven days be sent by first class
12 mail to the secretary of state who shall issue the official permit, and the triplicate shall be
13 preserved for four years by the authority issuing the permit. If the application is filed
14 electronically, two copies shall be made and each shall be signed by the applicant. One copy shall
15 be delivered to the applicant as the temporary permit, and the other copy shall be preserved for



1 four years by the authority issuing the permit.

2 Section 2. That chapter 23-7 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as
3 follows:

4 No information from a concealed pistol permit issued pursuant to § 23-7-8 may be
5 transferred by the local issuing authority to any agency other than the secretary of state. The
6 secretary of state may not allow information from any concealed pistol permit to be electronically
7 accessible to any other agency or person or to be transferred to any other agency or person for
8 the purpose of establishing or maintaining a statewide electronic database.

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0259

HOUSE STATE AFFAIRS COMMITTEE ENGROSSED

NO. **HB 1049** - 01/14/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on State Affairs at the request of the Bureau of
Administration

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to authorize the use of online reverse auctions for state
2 purchases.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. Terms used in this Act mean:

5 (1) "Reverse auction," a purchasing process in which bidders submit bids in competing
6 to sell supplies or services in an open environment via the internet;

7 (2) "Internet," the international computer network of both federal and nonfederal
8 interoperable packet switched data networks, including the graphical subnetwork
9 called the world wide web.

10 Section 2. That chapter 5-23 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as
11 follows:

12 Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, the Bureau of Administration may purchase
13 supplies or services by online reverse auction. The Bureau of Administration shall promulgate
14 rules, pursuant to chapter 1-26, to establish procedures pursuant to this section.



State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

167H0116

HOUSE TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
ENGROSSED NO. **HB 1067** - 01/26/2002

Introduced by: Representative Napoli and Senator Bogue

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish a fee for the assignment of a vehicle
2 identification number.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That chapter 32-3 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as
5 follows:

6 The fee for assignment of a vehicle identification number is twenty-five dollars. The fee is
7 payable to the county treasurer's office at the time of application for a rebuilt title. The county
8 treasurer shall forward to the Division of Motor Vehicles the rebuilt title application with the
9 affidavit of rebuilt motor vehicle and the vehicle identification number assignment fee. The rebuilt
10 application may not be processed if the fee is not paid. If the vehicle identification number is not
11 assigned as a result of the inspection of the vehicle, the Division of Motor Vehicles shall refund
12 the fee to the applicant.



State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

337H0143

HOUSE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

HB 1081 - 01/18/2002

Introduced by: Representatives Madsen, Abdallah, Bartling, Brown (Jarvis), Davis, Duenwald, Fryslye, Garnos, Gillespie, Hargens, Hennies (Thomas), Holbeck, Hunhoff, Juhnke, Klaudt, Lintz, McCaulley, McCoy, Michels, Monroe, Murschel, Nachtigal, Napoli, Peterson (Bill), Peterson (Jim), Pitts, Rhoden, Sebert, Sutton (Duane), Teupel, and Van Gerpen and Senators Greenfield, Apa, Bogue, Hutmacher, McCracken, Moore, and Olson (Ed)

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise certain provisions regarding the revocation or
2 suspension of driving privileges upon conviction for unlawful sales, purchases, possession,
3 or consumption of alcoholic beverages involving persons under twenty-one years of age.

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

5 Section 1. That § 35-9-7 be amended to read as follows:

6 35-9-7. If the conviction or adjudication for a violation of § 35-9-1.1 or 35-9-2 is for a first
7 offense, the court shall, in addition to any other penalty allowed by law, order the suspension of
8 the ~~defendant's~~ person's driving privileges for a period not less than thirty days and not to exceed
9 one year. However, the court may issue an order permitting the person to operate a motor
10 vehicle for purposes of the person's employment or attendance at school or to court-ordered
11 counseling programs during the hours of the day and the days of the week set forth in the order.
12 The court may also restrict the privilege in ~~such~~ some other manner as ~~it sees~~ the court may see



1 fit for a period not to exceed one year.

2 If the conviction or adjudication for a violation of § 35-9-1.1 or 35-9-2 is for a second or
3 subsequent offense, the court shall, in addition to any other penalty allowed by law, order the
4 suspension of the ~~defendant's~~ person's driving privileges for a period not less than sixty days and
5 not to exceed one year. However, the court may issue an order permitting the person to operate
6 a motor vehicle for purposes of the person's employment or attendance at school or to court-
7 ordered counseling programs during the hours of the day and the days of the week set forth in
8 the order. The court may also restrict the privilege in some other manner as the court may see
9 fit for a period not to exceed one year.

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

921H0064

SENATE TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
ENGROSSED NO. **HB 1091** - 02/05/2002

Introduced by: Representatives Adelstein, Klaudt, and Van Etten and Senators Putnam and
Apa

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to make compliance with federal selective service
2 requirements a condition of obtaining certain driver licenses.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That chapter 32-12 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as
5 follows:

6 No male United States citizen or immigrant who is at least eighteen years of age but less than
7 twenty-six years of age and who is required to register with the United States Selective Service
8 System may apply for or be issued a driver license, renewal, or duplicate or a nondriver
9 identification card, renewal, or duplicate pursuant to this chapter unless the applicant is
10 registered, or consents to be registered as provided in this section, in compliance with the
11 Military Selective Service Act, 50 U.S.C. App. 453, as amended to January 1, 2002.

12 The Department of Commerce and Regulation shall forward in an electronic format the
13 necessary personal information required for registration of any applicant identified in this section
14 to the United States Selective Service System. The applicant's submission of the application



1 indicates that the applicant has already registered with the Selective Service System or that he
2 is authorizing the department to forward to the Selective Service System the necessary
3 information for such registration. The department shall notify the applicant on the application
4 that his submission of the application serves as his consent to be registered with the Selective
5 Service System if so required by federal law.

6 Section 2. That chapter 32-12A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
7 as follows:

8 No male United States citizen or immigrant who is at least eighteen years of age but less than
9 twenty-six years of age and who is required to register with the United States Selective Service
10 System may apply for or be issued a commercial driver license, renewal, or duplicate pursuant
11 to this chapter unless the applicant is registered, or consents to be registered as provided in this
12 section, in compliance with the Military Selective Service Act, 50 U.S.C. App. 453, as amended
13 to January 1, 2002.

14 The Department of Commerce and Regulation shall forward in an electronic format the
15 necessary personal information required for registration of any applicant identified in this section
16 to the United States Selective Service System. The applicant's submission of the application
17 indicates that the applicant has already registered with the Selective Service System or that he
18 is authorizing the department to forward to the Selective Service System the necessary
19 information for such registration. The department shall notify the applicant on the application
20 that his submission of the application serves as his consent to be registered with the Selective
21 Service System if so required by federal law.

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

145H0477 **SENATE EDUCATION COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.**
HB 1187 - 02/07/2002

Introduced by: Representatives Teupel, Adelstein, Derby, Frost, Hennies (Thomas), Holbeck, Jaspers, Kooistra, Madsen, McCaulley, Pummel, Rhoden, and Slaughter and Senators Olson (Ed), Apa, Brosz, Koskan, McCracken, Reedy, Symens, and Vitter

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to allow certain school district transfers.

2 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

3 Section 1. That chapter 13-16 be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read as
4 follows:

5 Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, if two or more school districts
6 consolidate, for one year after consolidation pursuant to § 13-6-61, the newly formed school
7 district may transfer any money from its general fund to its capital outlay fund. However, any
8 funds transferred pursuant to this section may only be spent for one-time costs related to the
9 consolidation. Any funds transferred to the capital outlay fund, but not lawfully obligated within
10 one year of the date of the consolidation, shall revert to the school district's general fund. The
11 Department of Education and Cultural Affairs shall promulgate rules pursuant to chapter 1-26
12 to require the necessary information and establish procedures necessary to implement this
13 section.



State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

627H0627

SENATE TAXATION COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

HB 1219 - 02/06/2002

Introduced by: Representative Hennies (Thomas) and Senator Ham

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise the household income threshold and index factor

2 for determining certain freezes on property assessments and to declare an emergency.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 10-6A-2 be amended to read as follows:

5 10-6A-2. Any person making an application under the provisions of this chapter is entitled
6 to a real property tax assessment freeze upon the person's single-family dwelling if the following
7 conditions are met:

- 8 (1) Has a household income of less than ~~fourteen thousand dollars~~ fifteen thousand forty-
9 one dollars and twenty-eight cents if the household is a single-member household; or
- 10 (2) Has a household income of less than ~~seventeen thousand five hundred dollars~~ eighteen
11 thousand eight hundred one dollars and fifty-nine cents if the household is a
12 multiple-member household; and
- 13 (3) Has owned a single-family dwelling, in fee or by contract to purchase, for at least one
14 year and has been a resident of South Dakota for at least one year; and
- 15 (4) Has resided for at least two hundred days of the previous calendar year in the



1 single-family dwelling; and

2 (5) Has established a base year.

3 Beginning on January 1, ~~1999~~ 2003, the household income listed in subdivisions (1) and (2)
4 of this section shall increase by the index factor. The index factor is the annual percentage change
5 in the consumer price index for urban wage earners and clerical workers as computed by the
6 Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor for the year before the year
7 immediately preceding the year of adjustment or ~~three percent~~ the annual percentage change in
8 federal social security payments for the preceding year, whichever is ~~less~~ greater.

9 Section 2. Whereas, this Act is necessary for the support of the state government and its
10 existing public institutions, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Act shall be in full
11 force and effect from and after its passage and approval.

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SEVENTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2002

400H0349

HOUSE COMMERCE COMMITTEE ENGROSSED NO.

SB 50 - 02/05/2002

Introduced by: The Committee on Commerce at the request of the Department of Commerce
and Regulation

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to regulate the practice of accountancy.

2 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

3 Section 1. That sections 36-20A-1 to 36-20A-36, inclusive, be repealed.

4 Section 2. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read

5 as follows:

6 Terms as used in this chapter mean:

7 (1) "Board," the South Dakota Board of Accountancy established pursuant to this chapter
8 or its predecessor;

9 (2) "Certificate," a certificate as a certified public accountant issued pursuant to this
10 chapter or corresponding provisions of prior law, or a corresponding certificate as
11 certified public accountant issued after examination under the law of any other state;

12 (3) "Client," a person or entity that agrees with a licensee to receive any professional
13 service other than an employer-employee relationship;

14 (4) "CPA firm" and "PA firm," a sole proprietorship, a corporation, a partnership, or any



1 other form of organization permitted by law issued a permit under this chapter;

2 (5) "Compilation," providing a service to be performed in accordance with Statements on
3 Standards for Accounting and Review Services (SSARS) that is presenting in the
4 form of financial statements, information that is the representation of management
5 (owners) without undertaking to express any assurance on the statements;

6 (6) "Domestic," referring to a jurisdiction of a state;

7 (7) "Foreign," referring to a jurisdiction outside of the United States;

8 (8) "License," a certificate issued pursuant to this chapter, a permit issued pursuant to this
9 chapter, or a registration pursuant to this chapter; or in each case, a certificate,
10 license, or permit issued under corresponding provisions of prior law;

11 (9) "Licensee," the holder of a certificate issued pursuant to this chapter or of a license
12 issued under prior law, or of a permit issued pursuant to this chapter; or in each case,
13 a certificate, license, or permit issued under corresponding provisions of prior law;

14 (10) "Manager," manager of a limited liability company;

15 (11) "Member," a member of a limited liability company;

16 (12) "Peer review," a study, appraisal, or review of one or more aspects of the professional
17 work of a certificate holder or CPA firm that performs attest or compilation services,
18 by a qualified person or persons who hold certificates and who are not affiliated with
19 the certificate holder or CPA firm being reviewed;

20 (13) "Permit," a permit to practice public accountancy issued to a firm pursuant to this
21 chapter or corresponding provisions of prior law or under corresponding provisions
22 of the laws of other states;

23 (14) "Professional," arising out of or related to the specialized knowledge or skills
24 associated with CPAs or PAs;

- 1 (15) "Public accountant," a person holding a public accountant license issued pursuant to
2 provisions of prior law;
- 3 (16) "State," any state of the United States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the U.S.
4 Virgin Islands, and Guam;
- 5 (17) "Substantial equivalency," a determination by the board or its designee that the
6 education, examination, and experience requirements contained in the statutes and
7 administrative rules of another jurisdiction are comparable to, or exceed the
8 education, examination, and experience requirements contained in this chapter or that
9 an individual CPA's education, examination, and experience qualifications are
10 comparable to or exceed the education, examination, and experience requirements
11 contained in this chapter.

12 Section 3. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
13 as follows:

14 For the purposes of this chapter, attest means providing the following financial statement
15 services:

- 16 (1) Any audit or other engagement to be performed in accordance with the Statements
17 on Auditing Standards (SAS);
- 18 (2) Any review of a financial statement to be performed in accordance with the
19 Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services (SSARS);
- 20 (3) Any examination of prospective financial information to be performed in accordance
21 with the Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE); and
- 22 (4) The issuance of any report prescribed by the Statements on Auditing Standards, the
23 Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services, or the Statements on
24 Standards for Attestation Engagements on any services to which those statements on

1 standards apply, indicating that the service was performed in accordance with
2 standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

3 The statements on standards specified in this definition shall be adopted by reference by the
4 board, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, and shall be those developed for general
5 application by recognized national accountancy organizations.

6 Section 4. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
7 as follows:

8 For the purposes of this chapter, the term, report, if used with reference to financial
9 statements, means an opinion, report, or other form of language that states or implies assurance
10 as to the reliability of any financial statements or assertion. It also includes or is accompanied by
11 any statement or implication that the person or firm issuing it has special knowledge or
12 competence in accounting or auditing and that the service reported upon was performed under
13 standards for such services established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
14 Such a statement or implication of special knowledge or competence may arise from use by the
15 issuer of the report of names or titles indicating that the person or firm is an accountant or
16 auditor, or from the language of the report itself. The term, report, includes any form of language
17 which disclaims an opinion when such form of language is conventionally understood to imply
18 any positive assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements referred to or special
19 competence on the part of the person or firm issuing such language or both; and it includes any
20 other form of language that is conventionally understood to imply such assurance or such special
21 knowledge or competence or both.

22 Section 5. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
23 as follows:

24 There is created the South Dakota Board of Accountancy, which has responsibility for the

1 administration and enforcement of this chapter. The board consists of six members, all of whom
2 shall be residents of this state. Five members shall be appointed by the Governor for four-year
3 terms. Four of the appointed members shall be holders of active certificates and three of these
4 shall be in the practice of public accountancy. One appointed member shall be a lay member who
5 is not a holder of a certificate under this chapter but shall have had professional or practical
6 experience in the use of accounting services and financial statements, so as to be qualified to
7 make judgments about the qualifications and conduct of persons and firms subject to regulation
8 under this chapter. The auditor general shall serve as an ex officio member. Any vacancy
9 occurring during a term shall be filled by appointment by the Governor for the unexpired term.
10 Upon the expiration of the member's term of office, a member shall continue to serve until a
11 successor is appointed and takes office. Any member of the board whose certificate is revoked
12 or suspended shall automatically cease to be a member of the board, and the Governor may
13 remove any member of the board for cause. No person who has served two successive complete
14 terms is eligible for reappointment, but appointment to fill an unexpired term is not considered
15 a complete term for this purpose.

16 Section 6. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
17 as follows:

18 The board shall elect annually from among its members a chair, vice chair, and secretary-
19 treasurer. A quorum for the transaction of board business shall consist of a majority of the
20 members. The board shall meet at such times and places as may be determined by the board. The
21 board shall have a seal which shall be judicially noticed. The board shall retain or arrange for the
22 retention of all applications and all documents under oath that are filed with the board and also
23 records of its proceedings, and it shall maintain a registry of the names and addresses of all active
24 licensees under this chapter. The board may maintain a registry of the names and addresses of

1 all other licensees. In any proceeding in court, whether civil or criminal, arising out of or founded
2 upon any provision of this chapter, copies of any records certified as true copies under the seal
3 of the board are admissible in evidence as tending to prove the contents of the records.

4 Section 7. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
5 as follows:

6 The board is within the Department of Commerce and Regulation and shall submit reports
7 of its activities in the form and at such times as required by the secretary of commerce and
8 regulation.

9 Section 8. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
10 as follows:

11 All money coming into the custody of the board each calendar month shall be paid by the
12 board to the state treasurer on or before the tenth day of the next month. The state treasurer shall
13 credit the money to the South Dakota Board of Accountancy fund. The money in the South
14 Dakota Board of Accountancy fund is continuously appropriated to the board for the purpose
15 of paying the expense of administering and enforcing the provisions of this chapter. However,
16 the total expense incurred may not exceed the total money collected by the board under the
17 provisions of this chapter.

18 Section 9. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
19 as follows:

20 Each member of the board shall be paid an amount established by law for each day or portion
21 thereof spent in the discharge of the member's official duties and shall be reimbursed for the
22 member's expenses incurred in the discharge of the member's official duties in accordance with
23 the schedule adopted by the Board of Finance for state employees.

24 Section 10. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read

1 as follows:

2 The board may employ an executive director and such other personnel as it deems necessary
3 in its administration and enforcement of this chapter. The board may appoint committees or
4 persons to advise or assist it in such administration and enforcement. The board may retain legal
5 counsel to advise and assist it in addition to the advice and assistance provided by the attorney
6 general.

7 Section 11. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
8 as follows:

9 In addition to any other power granted to the board, the board may take any action that is
10 necessary and proper to effectuate the purposes of this chapter, including:

- 11 (1) The power to sue and be sued in its official name as an agency of this state;
- 12 (2) To issue subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of
13 documents;
- 14 (3) To administer oaths;
- 15 (4) To take testimony and to cooperate with the appropriate authorities in other states in
16 investigation and enforcement concerning violations of this chapter and comparable
17 acts of other states; and
- 18 (5) To receive evidence, concerning all matters within the scope of this chapter.

19 In case of disobedience of a subpoena, the board may invoke the aid of any court in requiring
20 the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of documentary evidence.

21 Section 12. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
22 as follows:

23 The board, its members, and its agents are immune from personal liability for actions taken
24 in good faith in the discharge of the board's responsibilities, and the state shall hold the board,

1 its members, and its agents harmless from all costs, damages, and attorneys' fees arising from
2 claims and suits against them with respect to matters to which such immunity applies.

3 Section 13. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
4 as follows:

5 The board may promulgate rules, pursuant to chapter 1-26, governing its administration and
6 enforcement of this chapter and the conduct of licensees, including:

- 7 (1) Rules governing the board's meetings and the conduct of its business;
- 8 (2) Rules of procedure governing the conduct of investigations and hearings by the board;
- 9 (3) Rules specifying the fees, educational and experience qualifications required for the
10 issuance of certificates, the date for renewal of firm permits and certificates, and the
11 continuing professional education required for renewal of certificates;
- 12 (4) Rules of professional conduct to control the quality and integrity of the practice of
13 public accountancy by licensees, covering such areas as independence, integrity, and
14 objectivity; competence and technical and professional standards; responsibilities to
15 the public; and responsibilities to clients;
- 16 (5) Rules governing the manner and circumstances of use by holders of certificates who
17 do not practice public accountancy, as defined under this chapter, of the titles certified
18 public accountant and CPA;
- 19 (6) Rules specifying procedures and fees for registration of certificate holders who do not
20 practice public accountancy, as defined under this chapter;
- 21 (7) Rules governing the manner and circumstances of use by holders of licenses issued
22 under prior law who do not practice public accountancy, as defined under this
23 chapter, of the titles public accountant and PA;
- 24 (8) Rules specifying procedures and fees for registration of license holders who do not

- 1 practice public accountancy, as defined under this chapter;
- 2 (9) Rules regarding peer review pursuant to this chapter;
- 3 (10) Rules specifying peer review administrative fees;
- 4 (11) Rules specifying procedures and fees for required peer review documentation not filed
- 5 in a timely manner;
- 6 (12) Rules specifying fees for examination and reexamination and issuance of a certificate;
- 7 (13) Rules specifying procedures and fees for proctoring applicants from another
- 8 jurisdiction;
- 9 (14) Rules specifying the procedures and fees for initial issuance or renewal of a firm
- 10 permit;
- 11 (15) Rules governing the application and fees for a modification of a disciplinary action or
- 12 reissue of a certificate or firm permit;
- 13 (16) Rules governing the methods, eligibility, and requirements for applying for
- 14 examination and reexamination;
- 15 (17) Rules specifying procedures and fees for renewal of certificates and firm permits not
- 16 filed in a timely manner;
- 17 (18) Rules specifying procedures and fees for replacement of a certificate or permit;
- 18 (19) Rules specifying methods and requirements for conducting the examination;
- 19 (20) Rules specifying methods, eligibility, and requirements of applying for a certificate;
- 20 (21) Rules specifying procedures and fees for issuance of certificates and firm permits not
- 21 filed within the required period of time;
- 22 (22) Rules defining active and inactive status of both certificate and PA license holders
- 23 who are not practicing public accountancy; and
- 24 (23) Rules specifying procedures and fees on substantial equivalency.

1 Section 14. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
2 as follows:

3 The board shall grant a certificate to any applicant who meets the requirements of good
4 moral character, education, examination, and experience requirements and who pays the fees
5 prescribed in this chapter.

6 Section 15. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
7 as follows:

8 Good moral character for purposes of section 14 of this Act means lack of a history of
9 dishonest or felonious acts. The board may refuse to grant a certificate on the ground of failure
10 to satisfy this requirement only if there is a substantial connection between the lack of good
11 moral character of the applicant and the professional responsibilities of a licensee and if the
12 finding by the board or lack of good moral character is supported by clear and convincing
13 evidence. If an applicant is found to be unqualified for a certificate because of a lack of good
14 moral character, the board shall furnish the applicant a statement containing the findings of the
15 board, a complete record of the evidence upon which the determination was based, and a notice
16 of the applicant's right of appeal.

17 Section 16. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
18 as follows:

19 The education requirement for a certificate, which shall be met before one hundred days after
20 an applicant sits for the examination prescribed in this chapter, is at least one hundred fifty
21 semester hours of college education, including graduation from an accredited college or
22 university with a baccalaureate or a graduate degree in accounting, or the satisfactory completion
23 of a course of study which the board has determined to be substantially the equivalent of an
24 accounting degree, including related courses in other areas of business administration. Such

1 courses of study may be in a college or university, recognized by the board.

2 Section 17. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
3 as follows:

4 The examination required to be passed as a condition for the granting of a certificate shall
5 be held at least annually and shall test the applicant's knowledge of the subjects of accounting,
6 auditing, and such other related subjects as the board may specify by rule promulgated pursuant
7 to chapter 1-26. The time for holding such examination shall be determined by the board and may
8 be changed from time to time. The board shall prescribe, by rule promulgated pursuant to
9 chapter 1-26, the methods of applying for and conducting the examination, including methods
10 for grading and determining a passing grade required of an applicant for a certificate. However,
11 the board shall, to the extent possible, assure that the examination, grading of the examination,
12 and the passing grades are uniform with those applicable in other states. The board may make
13 use of any part of the Uniform Certified Public Accountant Examination and Advisory Grading
14 Service of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and may contract with third
15 parties to perform such administrative services with respect to the examination to assist it in
16 performing its duties.

17 Section 18. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
18 as follows:

19 An applicant shall pass all parts of the examination provided for in this section to qualify for
20 a certificate. If at any sitting of the examination an applicant passes the number of parts specified
21 by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, then the applicant shall be given
22 credit for those parts passed and need not sit for reexamination in those parts if:

23 (1) The applicant wrote all parts of the examination specified by the board, by rule
24 promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26;

- 1 (2) The applicant attained a minimum grade specified by the board, by rule promulgated
2 pursuant to chapter 1-26, on each section not passed at that sitting;
- 3 (3) The applicant passes the remaining parts of the examination within a period of time
4 specified by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, given after the
5 initial examination at which the first parts were passed;
- 6 (4) At each subsequent sitting at which the applicant seeks to pass any additional parts,
7 the applicant writes all parts as specified by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant
8 to chapter 1-26; and
- 9 (5) In order to receive credit for passing additional parts in any such subsequent sitting,
10 the applicant attains such grades on parts written but not passed on such sitting as
11 specified by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26.

12 Section 19. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
13 as follows:

14 An applicant shall be given credit for any parts of an examination passed in another state if
15 such credit would have been given, under then applicable requirements, if the applicant had taken
16 the examination in this state. The board may in particular cases waive or defer any of the
17 foregoing requirements regarding the circumstances in which the various parts of the
18 examination shall be passed, upon a showing that, by reason of circumstances beyond the
19 applicant's control, the applicant was unable to meet such requirement.

20 Section 20. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
21 as follows:

22 An applicant shall pass an examination covering the rules of ethics and professional conduct
23 promulgated by the board pursuant to chapter 1-26. The examination may be part of the uniform
24 CPA examination or may be a separate examination.

1 Section 21. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
2 as follows:

3 The board may charge, or provide for a third-party administering the examination to charge,
4 each applicant a fee, in an amount prescribed by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant to
5 chapter 1-26, for each section of the examination or reexamination taken by the applicant.

6 Section 22. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
7 as follows:

8 An applicant for initial issuance of a certificate under this chapter shall show that the
9 applicant has acquired one year of experience. This experience shall include providing any type
10 of service or advice involving the use of accounting, attest, management advisory, financial
11 advisory, tax, or consulting skills, all of which were verified by a licensee, meeting requirements
12 prescribed by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26. Acceptable experience
13 may be gained through employment in government, industry, academia, or public practice. Any
14 person holding a valid certificate issued by this state prior to July 1, 2002, is deemed to have met
15 the requirements of this section.

16 Section 23. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
17 as follows:

18 An individual who passes the examination as a South Dakota candidate may apply for a
19 certificate in accordance with requirements and by such date established by rule, promulgated
20 pursuant to chapter 1-26. The board shall grant or renew a certificate to any person who makes
21 application and demonstrates qualifications that are in accordance with the provisions of this
22 chapter eligibility under the substantial equivalency standard provided in this chapter.

23 Section 24. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
24 as follows:

1 A certificate shall be initially issued, and renewed, for a period of one year. However,
2 certificates shall expire on the renewal date as established by the board, by rule promulgated
3 pursuant to chapter 1-26. Applications for such certificates shall be made in such form, and in
4 the case of applications for renewal, between such dates, as the board shall specify by rule
5 promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26. The board shall grant or deny any such application no
6 later than ninety days after the application is filed in proper form. If the applicant seeks the
7 opportunity to show that issuance or renewal of a certificate was mistakenly denied, or if the
8 board is not able to determine whether it should be granted or denied, the board may issue to the
9 applicant a provisional certificate, which shall expire ninety days after its issuance or when the
10 board determines whether to issue or renew the certificate for which application was made,
11 whichever occurs first.

12 The failure of an applicant to renew under this chapter does not deprive the applicant of the
13 right of renewal thereafter if the applicant is otherwise qualified.

14 Section 25. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
15 as follows:

16 Any holder of a certificate or registration shall relinquish such document to the board within
17 thirty days after such certificate or registration has been suspended or revoked.

18 Section 26. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
19 as follows:

20 The board shall issue a certificate to an applicant who does not qualify for reciprocity under
21 the substantial equivalency standard provided in this chapter but who holds a certificate, license,
22 or permit issued by another state upon a showing that:

23 (1) The applicant passed the examination required for issuance of the applicant's
24 certificate with grades that would have been passing grades at the time in this state;

- 1 (2) The applicant had four years of experience of the type described in this chapter or
2 meets equivalent requirements prescribed by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant
3 to chapter 1-26, after passing the examination upon which the applicant's certificate
4 was based and within the ten years immediately preceding the application; and
- 5 (3) The applicant has fulfilled the requirements of continuing professional education that
6 would have been applicable under subdivision (2) if the applicant's certificate, license,
7 or permit was issued more than four years prior to the application for issuance of an
8 initial certificate under this chapter.

9 Section 27. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
10 as follows:

11 A certificate holder licensed by another state, before establishing a principal place of business
12 in this state, shall request the issuance of a certificate from the board. The board shall issue a
13 certificate to any applicant who obtains from the board of the other state verification that such
14 applicant's qualifications are substantially equivalent to the CPA licensure requirements of this
15 chapter.

16 Section 28. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
17 as follows:

18 For renewal of a certificate under this chapter, a licensee shall participate in a program of
19 learning designed to maintain professional competency. The program of learning shall comply
20 with rules, promulgated by the board pursuant to chapter 1-26. A licensee shall complete one
21 hundred twenty hours of continuing education in each three-year renewal period. The board may,
22 by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, establish an exception to this requirement for
23 certificate holders who do not perform or offer to perform for the public one or more kinds of
24 services involving the use of accounting or auditing skills, including issuance of reports on

1 financial statements or of one or more kinds of management advisory, financial advisory, or
2 consulting services, or the preparation of tax returns or the furnishing of advice on tax matters.
3 Any licensee granted such an exception by the board must place the word, inactive, adjacent to
4 their CPA title or PA title on any business card, letterhead, or any other document or device,
5 with the exception of their CPA certificate or PA license, on which their CPA or PA title
6 appears.

7 Section 29. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
8 as follows:

9 The board shall charge a fee for each application for initial issuance or renewal of a certificate
10 under this chapter in an amount prescribed by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter
11 1-26.

12 Section 30. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
13 as follows:

14 An applicant for initial issuance or renewal of a certificate under this chapter shall in the
15 application, list any state in which the applicant has applied for or holds a certificate, license, or
16 permit and list any past denial, revocation, or suspension of a certificate, license, or permit. Each
17 holder of or applicant for a certificate under this chapter shall notify the board in writing, within
18 thirty days after its occurrence, of any issuance, denial, revocation, or suspension of a certificate,
19 license, or permit by another state, change of address or employment, or any conviction of a
20 felony.

21 Section 31. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
22 as follows:

23 The board shall issue a certificate to a holder of a substantially equivalent foreign designation
24 if the following conditions are satisfied:

- 1 (1) The foreign authority which granted the designation makes similar provision to allow
2 a person who holds a valid certificate issued by this state to obtain such foreign
3 authority's comparable designation;
- 4 (2) The foreign designation was duly issued by a foreign authority that regulates the
5 practice of public accountancy, based on educational and examination requirements
6 established by the foreign authority or by statute and the foreign designation has not
7 expired or been revoked or suspended;
- 8 (3) The applicant received the designation, based on educational and examination
9 standards substantially equivalent to those in effect in this state at the time the foreign
10 designation was granted, and the designation was issued upon the basis of
11 educational, examination, and experience requirements established by the foreign
12 authority or by law;
- 13 (4) The applicant passed a qualifying examination, with the examination grading and
14 passing grades being uniform with those applicable in other states, and an examination
15 acceptable to the board on the law, rules, and code of ethical conduct in effect in this
16 state; and
- 17 (5) The applicant received the designation based on educational and examination
18 standards substantially equivalent to those in effect in this state at the time the foreign
19 designation was granted; completed an experience requirement substantially
20 equivalent to the requirement provided in this chapter in the jurisdiction which granted
21 the foreign designation or has completed four years of professional experience in this
22 state; or meets equivalent requirements prescribed by the board, by rule promulgated
23 pursuant to chapter 1-26, within the ten years immediately preceding the application;
24 and passed a uniform qualifying examination consistent with national standards and

1 an examination on the laws, rules, and code of ethical conduct in effect in this state.

2 An applicant under this section shall list in the application all jurisdictions, foreign and
3 domestic, in which the applicant has applied for or holds a designation to practice public
4 accountancy, and each holder of a certificate issued under this section shall notify the board in
5 writing, within thirty days after its occurrence, of any issuance, denial, revocation, or suspension
6 of a designation or commencement of a disciplinary or enforcement action by any jurisdiction.
7 The board has the sole authority to interpret the application of the provisions of this section.

8 Section 32. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
9 as follows:

10 Any certificate holder who performs compilation services for the public other than through
11 a CPA firm shall undergo, no more frequently than once every three years, as a condition for
12 renewal of a certificate, a peer review conducted in such manner as the board shall specify by
13 rule, promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26. The review shall include verification that the
14 certificate holder has met the competency requirements set out in professional standards for such
15 services.

16 Section 33. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
17 as follows:

18 The board shall grant or renew a permit to practice as a CPA firm or PA firm to an entity that
19 makes application and demonstrates its qualifications in accordance with this chapter or to a
20 CPA firm originally licensed in another state that establishes an office in this state. A firm with
21 multiple locations shall obtain a permit for each location. A firm must hold a permit issued under
22 this section in order to provide attest services as defined in this chapter or to use the title, CPAs,
23 CPA firm, PAs, or PA firm.

24 A permit shall be initially issued and renewed for periods of not more than one year.

1 However, a permit expires on the date as established by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant
2 to chapter 1-26 following issuance or renewal. An application for a permit shall be made in such
3 form, and in the case of an application for renewal, between such dates as the board may, by rule
4 promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, specify. If the applicant seeks the opportunity to show
5 that issuance or renewal of a permit was mistakenly denied or if the board is not able to
6 determine whether it should be granted or denied, the board may issue to the applicant a
7 provisional permit, which expires ninety days after its issuance, or when the board determines
8 whether to issue or renew the permit for which the application was made, whichever occurs first.

9 Section 34. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
10 as follows:

11 An applicant for initial issuance or renewal of a permit to practice under this chapter shall
12 comply with the following:

13 (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a majority of the owners of the firm, in
14 terms of financial interests and voting rights, are holders of a certificate and are
15 licensed in some state, and such owners whose principal place of business is in this
16 state and who perform professional services in this state hold a valid certificate issued
17 under this chapter or the corresponding provision of prior law or are public
18 accountants registered under this chapter. Firms may include nonlicensee owners.
19 However, such firms must be controlled by the majority vote of owners who are
20 holders of a certificate and who are licensed in some state, and such control may not
21 be relinquished by contract, such as through veto rights held by owners of less than
22 a majority of the owners. The firm and its ownership shall comply with rules
23 promulgated by the board pursuant to chapter 1-26. For firms of public accountants,
24 at least a majority of the owners of the firm must be holders of registrations under this

1 chapter;

2 (2) Any CPA or PA firm as defined in this chapter may include nonlicensee owners if the
3 firm designates a licensee of this state who is responsible for the proper registration
4 of the firm and identifies non-license owners to the board;

5 (3) All nonlicensee owners are active individual participants in the CPA or PA firm or an
6 affiliated entity;

7 (4) The firm complies with such other requirements as the board may establish by rule
8 promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26;

9 (5) Any individual licensee who is responsible for supervising attest or compilation
10 services and signs or authorizes another individual to sign the accountant's report on
11 the financial statements on behalf of the firm shall meet the experience requirements
12 set out in the professional standards for such services; and

13 (6) Any individual licensee who signs or authorizes an individual to sign the accountant's
14 report on the financial statements on behalf of the firm shall meet the experience
15 requirement of this chapter.

16 An applicant for initial issuance or renewal of a permit to practice shall register each office
17 of the firm within this state with the board and show that all attest and compilation services
18 rendered in this state are under the charge of a person holding a valid certificate issued under this
19 chapter or the corresponding provision of prior law or some other state.

20 Section 35. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
21 as follows:

22 An applicant for initial issuance or renewal of a permit under this chapter shall list in the
23 application any state in which the applicant has applied for or holds a permit as a CPA firm and
24 shall list any past denial, revocation, or suspension of a permit by any other state.

1 Section 36. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
2 as follows:

3 Each holder of or applicant for a permit under this chapter shall notify the board in writing,
4 within thirty days after its occurrence, of any change in the identity of any partner, officer,
5 shareholder, member, or manager whose principal place of business is in this state, any change
6 in the number or location of offices within this state, any change in the identity of the person in
7 charge of such offices, and any issuance, denial, revocation, or suspension of a permit by any
8 other state.

9 Firms failing to comply with the provisions of this chapter due to changes in firm ownership
10 or personnel, after receiving or renewing a permit, shall take immediate corrective action to
11 return the firm to compliance. The board may grant a reasonable period of time for a firm to take
12 corrective action as specified by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26. Failure of the firm
13 to comply within a reasonable period as defined by the board shall result in the suspension or
14 revocation of the firm permit.

15 Section 37. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
16 as follows:

17 The board may, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, require, on either a uniform
18 or a random basis, as a condition of renewal of firm permits pursuant to this chapter, that an
19 applicant undergo peer review conducted in such manner and producing such satisfactory result
20 as the board may specify. However, any such requirement shall include reasonable provision for
21 compliance by means of an applicant furnishing evidence of a satisfactory peer review performed
22 for other purposes. Such review shall include a verification that individuals in the firm who are
23 responsible for supervising attest and compilation services and who sign or authorize someone
24 to sign the accountant's report on the financial statements on behalf of the firm, meet the

1 competency requirements set out in the professional standards for such services. Any rule
2 promulgated pursuant to this section shall:

3 (1) Include reasonable provision for compliance by an applicant showing that it has,
4 within the preceding three years, undergone a peer review that is a satisfactory
5 equivalent to peer review generally required pursuant to this section;

6 (2) Require, with respect to a peer review contemplated by subdivision (1), that it be
7 subject to oversight by an oversight body established or sanctioned by board rule,
8 promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, which body shall periodically report to the
9 board on the effectiveness of the review program under its charge, and provide to the
10 board a listing of firms that have participated in a peer review program that is
11 satisfactory to the board; and

12 (3) Require, with respect to peer review contemplated by subdivision (1), that any peer
13 review process be operated and any documents maintained in a manner designed to
14 preserve confidentiality, and that neither the board nor any third party, other than the
15 oversight body, may have access to documents furnished or generated in the course
16 of the review.

17 Pursuant to the peer review process, the board shall treat the reports of the reviewer and any
18 records submitted to the reviewer by the firm subject to review as confidential information. The
19 board may not disclose such information to any persons other than staff members, legal counsel,
20 and other persons retained by the board to assist it in fulfilling its responsibilities under this
21 chapter and the rules, promulgated by the board pursuant to chapter 1-26.

22 Section 38. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
23 as follows:

24 The board shall charge a fee for each application for initial issuance or renewal of a permit

1 in an amount prescribed by the board, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26.

2 Section 39. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
3 as follows:

4 Any person who, on the effective date of this Act, holds any license or permit as a public
5 accountant issued under prior law of this state may have the registration renewed upon
6 fulfillment of the continuing professional education requirements for renewal of certificates
7 provided in this chapter, and on the renewal cycle and payment of fees therein prescribed for
8 renewal of certificates. Any registration not so renewed expires three years after the effective
9 date of this Act. Firms of public accountants holding permits to practice issued under prior law
10 of this state may have their permits to practice renewed pursuant to the procedures, and subject
11 to the requirements for renewal of permits to practice for firms of certified public accountants,
12 provided in this chapter. So long as such public accountant licensees hold valid registrations and
13 permits to practice, they may perform attest and compilation services to the same extent as
14 holders of certificates, and other holders of permits, and in addition they may use the title, public
15 accountants and PA, but no other title. The holder of a registration issued under this section may
16 only perform attest services in a firm that holds a permit issued under this chapter.

17 Section 40. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
18 as follows:

19 An application by a person or a firm not a resident of this state for a certificate or a firm
20 permit to practice shall constitute appointment of the secretary of state as the applicant's agent
21 upon whom process may be served in any action or proceeding against the applicant arising out
22 of any transaction or operation connected with or incidental to services performed by the
23 applicant while a licensee within this state.

24 Section 41. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read

1 as follows:

2 The board may, in accordance with chapter 1-26, revoke any certificate, license, or permit
3 issued pursuant to this chapter or corresponding provisions of prior law or revoke or limit
4 privileges under this chapter; suspend any such certificate, license, or permit, or refuse to renew
5 any such certificate, license, or permit for a period of not more than five years; reprimand,
6 censure, or limit the scope of practice of any licensee; impose an administrative fine not
7 exceeding one thousand dollars, or place any licensee on probation, all with or without terms,
8 conditions, and limitations, for any one or more of the following reasons:

- 9 (1) Fraud or deceit in obtaining a certificate or permit;
- 10 (2) Cancellation, revocation, suspension, or refusal to renew a certificate, license, or
11 permit to engage in the practice of public accountancy in any other state for any
12 cause;
- 13 (3) Failure, on the part of a holder of a certificate, license, or permit under this chapter
14 or registration under this chapter, or of a certificate, license or permit issued by
15 another state, to maintain compliance with the requirements for issuance or renewal
16 of such certificate, license, permit, or registration or to report changes to the board;
- 17 (4) Revocation or suspension of the right to practice before any state or federal agency;
- 18 (5) Dishonesty, fraud, or gross negligence in the performance of services as a licensee or
19 individual granted privileges under this chapter or in the filing or failure to file one's
20 own income tax returns;
- 21 (6) Violation of any provision of this chapter or rule, promulgated by the board pursuant
22 to chapter 1-26, or violation of professional standards;
- 23 (7) Violation of any rule of professional conduct promulgated by the board pursuant to
24 chapter 1-26;

- 1 (8) Conviction of a felony, or of any crime an element of which is dishonesty or fraud,
2 under the laws of the United States, of this state, or of any other state if the acts
3 involved would have constituted a crime under the laws of this state;
- 4 (9) Performance of any fraudulent act while holding a certificate, license, or permit or
5 privilege issued under this chapter or prior law;
- 6 (10) Any conduct reflecting adversely upon the licensee's fitness to perform services while
7 a licensee, or individual granted privileges under this chapter;
- 8 (11) Making any false or misleading statement or verification, in support of an application
9 for a certificate, registration, or permit filed by another; and
- 10 (12) Dishonesty or gross negligence in the performance of peer reviews.

11 In lieu of or in addition to any remedy specifically provided in this section, the board may
12 require of a licensee a peer review conducted in such manner as the board may specify or
13 satisfactory completion of such continuing professional education programs as the board may
14 specify, or both.

15 In any proceeding in which a remedy provided by this section is imposed, the board may also
16 require the respondent licensee to pay the costs of the proceeding.

17 Section 42. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
18 as follows:

19 The board may, upon receipt of a complaint or other information suggesting violations of this
20 chapter or of the rules of the board, conduct investigations to determine whether there is
21 probable cause to institute proceedings under chapter 1-26 or of this chapter against any person
22 or firm for such violation. However, no investigation under this section may be a prerequisite to
23 such proceedings in the event that a determination of probable cause can be made without
24 investigation. In aid of such investigations, the board or the chair thereof may issue subpoenas

1 to compel witnesses to testify and to produce evidence.

2 Section 43. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
3 as follows:

4 The board may designate a member, or any other person of appropriate competence, to serve
5 as investigating officer to conduct an investigation. Upon completion of an investigation, the
6 investigating officer shall file a report with the board. The board shall find probable cause or lack
7 of probable cause upon the basis of the report or shall return the report to the investigating
8 officer for further investigation. Unless there has been a determination of probable cause, the
9 report of the investigating officer, the complaint, if any, the testimony and documents submitted
10 in support of the complaint or gathered in the investigation, and the fact of pendency of the
11 investigation shall be treated as confidential information and may not be disclosed to any person
12 except law enforcement authorities and, to the extent deemed necessary in order to conduct the
13 investigation, the subject of the investigation, persons whose complaints are being investigated,
14 and witnesses questioned in the course of the investigation.

15 Section 44. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
16 as follows:

17 Upon a finding of probable cause, if the subject of the investigation is a licensee or an
18 individual with privileges under this chapter, the board shall proceed in accordance with chapter
19 1-26. If the subject of the investigation is not a licensee or an individual with privileges under this
20 chapter, the board shall take appropriate action under this chapter. Upon a finding of no probable
21 cause, the board shall close the matter and shall thereafter release information relating thereto
22 only with the consent of the person or firm under investigation.

23 Section 45. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
24 as follows:

1 The board may review the publicly available professional work of licensees or an individual
2 with privileges under this chapter on a general and random basis, without any requirement of a
3 formal complaint or suspicion of impropriety on the part of any particular licensee. If, as a result
4 of such review, the board discovers grounds for a more specific investigation, the board may
5 proceed as prescribed under this chapter.

6 Section 46. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
7 as follows:

8 If probable cause with respect to a violation by a licensee or an individual with privileges
9 granted under this chapter has been determined by the board, or upon receipt of notice of a
10 decision by the board of another state furnishing grounds for a determination of probable cause,
11 the board may issue a complaint setting forth appropriate charges and set a date for hearing
12 before the board on such charges. If a complaint is issued and a hearing date set, the board shall,
13 not less than thirty days prior to the date of the hearing, serve a copy of the complaint and notice
14 of the time and place of the hearing upon the licensee or an individual with privileges granted
15 under this chapter, together with a copy of the board's rules governing proceedings under this
16 section, either by personal delivery or by mailing a copy thereof by registered mail to the licensee
17 at the licensee's address, last known to the board. In the case of an individual exercising
18 privileges under this chapter, service shall be by certified or registered mail to the address last
19 known to the board, or pursuant to chapter 1-26.

20 Section 47. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
21 as follows:

22 A licensee or an individual with privileges under this chapter against whom a complaint has
23 been issued under this section may, reasonably in advance of the hearing, examine and copy the
24 report of investigation, if any, and any documentary or testimonial evidence and summaries of

1 anticipated evidence in the board's possession relating to the subject matter of the complaint. The
2 board shall adopt rules, promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, governing proceedings under this
3 section to specify the manner in which such right may be exercised.

4 Section 48. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
5 as follows:

6 The respondent licensee or an individual with privileges granted under this chapter may
7 appear at the hearing in person or, in the case of a firm, through a partner, officer, director,
8 shareholder, member, or manager, and by counsel, examine witnesses and evidence presented
9 in support of the complaint, and present evidence and witnesses on the licensee's or an
10 individual's own behalf. The licensee or an individual granted privileges under this chapter is
11 entitled, on application to the board, to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of
12 witnesses and the production of documentary evidence.

13 Section 49. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
14 as follows:

15 The evidence supporting the complaint shall be presented by the investigating officer, by a
16 board member designated for that purpose, or by counsel. A board member who presents the
17 evidence, or who has conducted the investigation of the matter under this chapter, may not
18 participate in the board's decision of the matter.

19 The board shall be advised by counsel, who may be the same counsel who presents or assists
20 in presenting the evidence supporting the complaint.

21 A stenographic or electronic record may be made and filed with the board. A transcript need
22 not be prepared unless review is sought or the board determines that there is other good cause
23 for its preparation.

24 A recorded vote of a majority of all members of the board, other than members disqualified

1 by reason of this section, is required to sustain any charge and to impose any penalty with respect
2 thereto.

3 Section 50. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
4 as follows:

5 If after service of a complaint and notice of hearing the respondent licensee fails to appear
6 at the hearing, the board may proceed to hear evidence against the licensee or an individual
7 granted privileges under this chapter and may enter an order as it deems warranted by the
8 evidence. Any order shall be final unless the licensee or an individual granted privileges under
9 this chapter petitions for review. However, within thirty days from the date of any such order,
10 upon a showing of good cause for the licensee's or an individual's failure to appear and defend,
11 the board may set aside the order and schedule a new hearing on the complaint, to be conducted
12 in accordance with the provisions of this section.

13 Section 51. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
14 as follows:

15 Any person or firm adversely affected by any order of the board entered after a hearing under
16 this chapter may obtain review thereof by filing a written petition for review with the circuit
17 court within thirty days after the entry of the order. The procedures for review and the scope of
18 the review shall be as specified in chapter 1-26.

19 Section 52. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
20 as follows:

21 If the board renders a decision imposing discipline against a licensee or an individual granted
22 privileges under this chapter, the board shall notify any board of accountancy of any other state
23 in which the licensee also holds certificates, licenses, or permits of its decision, by mail, within
24 forty-five days of rendering the decision. The board may also furnish information relating to

1 proceedings resulting in disciplinary action to other public authorities and to private professional
2 organizations having a disciplinary interest in the licensee.

3 If a petition for review has been filed pursuant to this chapter, the notification and furnishing
4 of information provided for in this section shall await the resolution of such review and, if
5 resolution is in favor of the licensee or an individual granted privileges under this chapter, no
6 such notification or furnishing of information may be made.

7 Section 53. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
8 as follows:

9 If the board has suspended or revoked a certificate, license, permit, or registration or revoked
10 or limited privileges under this chapter or refused to renew a certificate, license, permit, or
11 registration, the board may, upon application in writing by the person or firm affected and for
12 good cause shown, modify the suspension, or reissue the certificate, license, permit, or
13 registration or remove the limitation or revocation of privileges.

14 The board shall, by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26, specify the manner in which
15 such applications shall be made, the times within which they shall be made, and the circumstances
16 in which hearings will be held.

17 Section 54. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
18 as follows:

19 Before reissuing or terminating the suspension of a certificate, license, permit, or registration
20 under this section or of privileges under this chapter, and as a condition thereto, the board may
21 require the applicant to show successful completion of specified continuing professional
22 education. The board may make the reinstatement of a certificate, license, permit, or registration
23 or of privileges under this chapter conditional and subject to satisfactory completion of a peer
24 review conducted in such manner as the board may specify.

1 Section 55. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
2 as follows:

3 No person other than a licensee may issue a report on financial statements of any person,
4 firm, organization, or governmental unit or offer to render or render any attest or compilation
5 service. This restriction does not prohibit any act of a public official or public employee in the
6 performance of that person's duties as such, or prohibit the performance by any nonlicensee of
7 other services involving the use of accounting skills, including the preparation of tax returns,
8 management advisory services, and the preparation of financial statements without the issuance
9 of reports thereon. A nonlicensee may prepare financial statements and issue nonattest
10 transmittals or information thereon which do not purport to be in compliance with the Statements
11 on Standards for Accounting and Review Services (SSARS).

12 A licensee performing attest or compilation services shall provide those services in
13 accordance with professional standards.

14 Section 56. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
15 as follows:

16 A person who does not hold a valid certificate may not use or assume the title, certified
17 public accountant, the abbreviation, CPA, or any other title, designation, words, letters,
18 abbreviation, sign, card, or device tending to indicate that such person is a certified public
19 accountant.

20 No firm may provide attest services or assume or use the title, certified public accountants,
21 or the abbreviation, CPAs, or any other title, designation, words, letters, abbreviation, sign, card,
22 or device tending to indicate that such firm is a CPA firm unless:

- 23 (1) The firm holds a valid permit issued under this chapter; and
24 (2) Ownership of the firm is in accordance with this chapter and rules promulgated by the

1 board in accordance with chapter 1-26.

2 Section 57. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
3 as follows:

4 No person who does not hold a valid license may use or assume the title, public accountant,
5 or the abbreviation, PA, or any other title, designation, words, letters, abbreviation, sign, card,
6 or device tending to indicate that such person is a public accountant.

7 No firm may provide attest services or assume or use the title, public accountants, or the
8 abbreviation, PAs, or any other title, designation, words, letters, abbreviation, sign, card, or
9 device tending to indicate that such firm is a PA firm unless:

- 10 (1) The firm holds a valid permit issued under this chapter; and
- 11 (2) Ownership of the firm is in accordance with this chapter and rules promulgated by the
12 board in accordance with chapter 1-26.

13 Section 58. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
14 as follows:

15 No person or firm, not holding a valid certificate, permit, or registration issued under this
16 chapter, may assume or use the title, certified accountant, chartered accountant, enrolled
17 accountant, licensed accountant, registered accountant, accredited accountant, or any other title
18 or designation likely to be confused with the titles, certified public accountant or public
19 accountant, or use any of the abbreviations CA, LA, RA, AA, or similar abbreviation likely to
20 be confused with the abbreviations, CPA or PA. The title, Enrolled Agent or EA may only be
21 used by individuals so designated by the Internal Revenue Service.

22 No nonlicensee may use language in any statement relating to the financial affairs of a person
23 or entity which is conventionally used by licensees in reports on financial statements.

24 Section 59. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read

1 as follows:

2 No person or firm which does not hold a valid certificate, permit, or registration issued under
3 this chapter may assume or use any title or designation that includes the words, accountant,
4 auditor, or accounting, in connection with any other language, including the language of a report,
5 that implies that such person or firm holds such a certificate, permit, or registration or has special
6 competence as an accountant or auditor. However, this section does not prohibit any officer,
7 partner, member, manager, or employee of any firm or organization from affixing that person's
8 own signature to any statement in reference to the financial affairs of such firm or organization
9 with any wording designating the position, title, or office that the person holds therein nor
10 prohibit any act of a public official or employee in the performance of the persons duties as such.

11 Any person or firm who violates the provisions of this section is guilty of a Class 2
12 misdemeanor.

13 Section 60. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
14 as follows:

15 The provisions of this chapter do not apply to any person or firm holding a certification,
16 designation, degree, or license granted in a foreign country entitling the holder thereof to engage
17 in the practice of public accountancy or its equivalent in such country, whose activities in this
18 state are limited to the provision of professional services to persons or firms who are residents
19 of, governments of, or business entities of, the country in which the person holds such
20 entitlement, who performs no attest or compilation services and who issues no reports with
21 respect to the financial statements of any other persons, firms, or governmental units in this state,
22 and who does not use in this state any title or designation other than the one under which the
23 person practices in such country, followed by a translation of such title or designation into the
24 English language, if it is in a different language, and by the name of such country.

1 Section 61. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
2 as follows:

3 No holder of a certificate issued under this chapter or a registration issued under this chapter
4 may perform attest services through any business form that does not hold a valid permit issued
5 under this chapter. This restriction does not prohibit any act of a public official or public
6 employee in the performance of that person's duties as such.

7 Section 62. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
8 as follows:

9 No individual licensee may issue a report in standard form upon a compilation of financial
10 information through any form of business that does not hold a valid permit issued under this
11 chapter unless the report discloses the name of the business through which the individual is
12 issuing the report, and the individual:

- 13 (1) Signs the compilation report identifying the individual as a CPA or PA;
- 14 (2) Meets the competency requirement provided in applicable standards; and
- 15 (3) Undergoes no less frequently than once every three years, a peer review conducted
16 in such manner as the board shall, by rule promulgate in accordance with chapter 1-
17 26, specify. Such review shall include verification that the individual has met the
18 competency requirements set out in professional standards for such services.

19 Section 63. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
20 as follows:

21 Nothing in this chapter prohibits a practicing attorney or firm of attorneys from preparing or
22 presenting records or documents customarily prepared by an attorney or firm of attorneys in
23 connection with the attorney's professional work in the practice of law.

24 Section 64. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read

1 as follows:

2 If, as a result of an investigation under this chapter or otherwise, the board believes that any
3 person or firm has engaged in, or is about to engage in any act or practice which constitutes or
4 will constitute a violation of this chapter, the board may make application to the appropriate
5 court for an order enjoining such act or practice, and upon a showing by the board that such
6 person or firm has engaged, or is about to engage, in any such act or practice, the court may
7 grant an injunction, restraining order, or other order as may be appropriate.

8 Section 65. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
9 as follows:

10 If, by reason of an investigation under this chapter or otherwise, the board has reason to
11 believe that any person or firm has knowingly engaged in any act or practice that constitutes a
12 violation of this chapter, the board may bring its information to the attention of the attorney
13 general of any state or other appropriate law enforcement officer who may cause appropriate
14 criminal proceedings to be brought thereon.

15 Any person or firm who knowingly violates any provision of this chapter is guilty of a Class
16 1 misdemeanor.

17 Section 66. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
18 as follows:

19 In any action brought under this chapter, evidence of the commission of a single act
20 prohibited by this chapter is sufficient to justify a penalty, injunction, restraining order, or
21 conviction, respectively, without evidence of a general course of conduct.

22 Section 67. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
23 as follows:

24 An individual whose principal place of business is not in this state having a valid certificate

1 or license as a certified public accountant from any state which the board has verified to be in
2 substantial equivalence with the licensure requirements of this chapter is presumed to have
3 qualifications substantially equivalent to this state's requirements and shall have all the privileges
4 of certificate holders and licensees of this chapter without the need to obtain a certificate or
5 permit under this chapter. However, such individuals shall notify the board of their intent to enter
6 the state under this provision completing procedures and paying fees specified by the board and
7 promulgated by rule pursuant to chapter 1-26.

8 Section 68. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
9 as follows:

10 An individual whose principal place of business is not in this state having a valid certificate
11 or license as a certified public accountant from any state which the board or its designee has not
12 verified to be in substantial equivalence with the licensure requirements of this chapter shall be
13 presumed to have qualifications substantially equivalent to this state's requirements and shall
14 have all the privileges of certificate holders and licensees of this state without the need to obtain
15 a certificate or permit under this chapter. However, such individuals shall notify the board of
16 their intent to enter the state under this provision completing procedures and paying fees
17 specified by the board and promulgated by rule pursuant to chapter 1-26.

18 Section 69. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
19 as follows:

20 Any licensee of another state exercising the privilege afforded under this chapter hereby
21 consents, as a condition of the grant of this privilege, to the personal and subject matter
22 jurisdiction and disciplinary authority of the board, to comply with this chapter and the board's
23 rules, and to the appointment of the state board which issued their license as their agent upon
24 whom process may be served in any action or proceeding by this board against the licensee.

1 Section 70. That chapter 36-20A be amended by adding thereto a NEW SECTION to read
2 as follows:

3 A licensee of this state offering or rendering services or using their CPA title in another state
4 is subject to disciplinary action in this state for an act committed in another state for which the
5 licensee would be subject to discipline for an act committed in the other state. Notwithstanding
6 the provisions in this chapter, the board shall investigate any complaint made by the board of
7 accountancy of another state.

8 Section 71. That § 47-13B-2 be amended to read as follows:

9 47-13B-2. The corporation shall be organized solely for the purpose of conducting the
10 practice of accountancy ~~only through persons qualified to practice accountancy in the State of~~
11 ~~South Dakota.~~

12 Section 72. That § 47-13B-5 be repealed.

13 ~~47-13B-5. All shareholders of the corporation shall be persons duly licensed as a public~~
14 ~~accountant or as a certified public accountant by some state and who at all times own shares in~~
15 ~~their own right. They shall be individuals who, except for illness, accident, time spent in the~~
16 ~~armed services, on vacations, and on leaves of absence, not to exceed one year, are actively~~
17 ~~engaged in the practice of accountancy or as certified public accountants.~~